























is given to a public utility to refuse .servic'e to any éustdmw1‘equestin_g it The Compahy has
acted legitimately to serve its retail Customér, just as it would any new residential or commercial
customer, and the only “contracts” that exist are on thig basis. No legitimate factual or legal
arguments have been presented to-the contrary,?’ Furthermore, the Company has acted properly
on behalf of all customers in the Haymarket Load Area to adequately maintain reliable service in
a growing area.

The Customer is developing a data center campus “along [the Company’s] lines” in

Prince William County — after working with the County’s economic development department

and siting there by right?® — and “desir[es] service.” Accordingly, the Company must act to serve

the Customer’s load and deliver adequate electric service and facilities as recognized by the
Hearing Examiner:

[[Interpreting need in the manner suggested by some of the parties
and public witnesses in this case would prevent Dominion from
performing its statutory duties as 'defined by the General
Assembly. Section 56-234 of the Code requires Dominion “to
furnish reasonably adequate service at 1easonable and just rates to
any person, firm or corporation along its lines desiring same.”

Excluding large block load customers, such as the Customer’s new
data center load when conducting a needs analysis, would put
Dominion and the Customer in a “Catch 22” regulatory situation.
In other words, the Customer needs additional power for its new
data center operations, Dominion has 2 statutory obligation to
provide such power, but Dominion would be prevented from doing
so because the line is not needed to serve Dominion’s other
customers. Such an interpretation of § 56-46.1 B of the Code not

the purposes in which such public utility is engaged and to the use‘and accommodation of the public.” Va. Code §
56-233.

2 Business Aides, Inc. v. Chesapeake & Potomac Tel, Co., 480 F.2d 754, 757 (4th Cir. 1973) (holding both Va.
Code § 56-234 and the public utility’s tariff direct the company to supply authorized service anywhere along its
lines as requested and do not permit refusal).

25 Both Somerset and the Coalition claim that “Dominion has not Acted as a public utility, but rather as a private
speculator,” There is no basis for such inflammatory and derisive remarks and they should be disregarded by the
Commission.

26 Ty, 362,
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only defies logic,’ it also would create a statutory conflict between
§§ 56-461 B and 56-234 of the Code.?’

The Commission agreec'l.28 Petitioners offer no legal support or rational argument as to why the
Hearing Examiner’s analysis and finding and the Commission’s conclusions should be
disturbed.?’

2. Petitioners’ facts from outside of the record regarding an alleged change in need are
incorrect.

To the extent the Commission deems it appropriate to look outside of the record ‘of this
proceeding when considering the Petitions, the Company has confirmed with the Customer that
its development of the data centers is continuing and has not diminished or gone away.
Petitioners’ statements to the contrary rely solely on misunderstandings bf certain sfatementé ‘
made by ‘éhe Customer’s 'outside‘ counsel at a March 8, 2017, meeting held by U.S.'Army Corps
of Engineers (“Corps™), and similar unsubstantiated claims by members of the Board.

By way of background, and as discussed throughout this case before the Commission, the

Customer’s data center campus consists of four Buﬂdings —an Existihg building (which currently
s operating as a (iata center); Buildingl 1 (Whiéh the Customer has constructed since the case was

before the Commission, and 'ourrenﬂy is operational as a data center); and, Buildings 2 and 3,

27 Hearing Examiner’s Report at 63. Somerset and the Coalition both misstate Staff’s position as it relates to the -
need. They claim “[S]taff recognized that the proposed Transmission Line’s construction to serve a single
customer’s projected load raises doubt that there is a need for the Transmission Line that is in the public interest.” A
review of Staff’s Comments cited by the Petitioners (dated December 6, 2016 at pp. 3-4), reveals that the Staff was
not claiming the need for a transmission line cannot be driven by one customer. Staff actually raises issues of
equitable cost allocation, not need. While the Company does not agree with Staff’s position on cost allocation, it is
important for the Commission to realize that the Petitioners are mischaracterizing Staff’s positions. To be clear,
Staff recognized the need and recommended the Project be granted a CPCN, Staff’s Post-Hearing Brief at 7
(recognizing the Company’s obligation to provide service to all customers that request it, including the Customer,
and stating: “because here that service can only adequately be provided by the construction of the Project, mcludmg

anew 230 kV transmission line, the Commission should grant the CPCN”").
28 Interim Order at 10.

% Po River, supranote 19.




which are in the permitting process before the Corps.*°

The March 8, 2017, meeting was in fuﬂherance}of the Corps’ comp‘liance with the
National Historic Preservation Act’s (“NHPA”) Section 106 consultation requirements to
consider the impacts on historic properties related to the Corps’ issuance of é Clean Water Act
Section 404 permit to the Customer for its proposed ﬁl;ling of wetlands for its construction and
operation of Buildings 2 and 3.3! Specifically, the; purpose of NHPA Section 106 consultation |
“is to identify historfc properties potentially affected by the undertaking [(iﬁ this case, the Corps’
issuance of a permit to the Customer)], assess its effects and seek ways to avoid, minimize or
mitigate any adverse effects on historic propm’ties.”32 The Company recently contacted the
Cuétomer’s outside counsel regarding what was, and was not, said at this meeting. The
Custo1’ner’s outside counsel’s response is includedI with this Response at Attachment 1.%3

According to the Lloyd Letter, during the nfneeti;ng, consulting parties raised issues related
to whether the Corps had determined the scope of its NﬁPA review appropriafely, and whethér
the Customer violated NHPA Section 110(k) by COllStl';lCtillg Building 1 and performing certain
clearing activities at the site before the Corps cominleteh its NHPA Section 106 consultation

}
process for Buildings 2 and 3.* As set out in a recent Cotps letter that ultimately addressed

30 Specifically, the Customer has sought a State Program General Permit (12-SPGP-01) from the Corps to discharge
fill material into 991 linear feet of stream channel and 0.10-acre palustrine forested wetlands as well as the
temporary discharge of fill into 14 linear feet of stream channel. State Program General Permits are used for
projects with minimal impacts to wetlands, and provide a streamlined process by which the Corps and Virginia
Department of Environmental Quahty (“VDEQ”) review the permit application, with VDEQ performing most of the
review and actually issuing the permit, but under which the Corps must participate and comply with the NHPA
Section 106 consultation requirements. See VDEQ, State Program General Permit, a7 http://www.deq.virginia.gov/
Programs/Water/WetlandsStreams/Permits/SPGP.aspx (last visited Aug. 8, 2017); see Corps, Midwood Project
Permit Application, af hitp://www.nao.usace, army.mil/Missions/Regulatory/Midwood/ (last visited Aug. 8, 2017).

3! See Coalition Petition at 3-4 and the Affidavits attached to the Coalition Petition.
236 C.F.R. §800.1.

33 See Letter from P. Lloyd, Williams Mullen, to D. DePippo, Dominion Energy (Aug. 10, 2017) (“Lloyd Letter™).

3 NHPA Section 110(k) prohibits a would-be applicant for a fedetal permit from destroying ot significantly
adver sely affecting historic properties prior to applying for a feder al permit that may be at issue during the per mit
}
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responsibilities, the Commission has endeavored to weigh
reasonably and carefully the competing evidence and arguments
presented in this record. As we have recognized in particular for
transmission line cases: Given all the competing considerations
and tradeoffs that must be considered, the Commission weighs
carefully the relevant expected impacts of alternatives before
ruling on a public utility’s request for a certificate of public
convenience and necessity to construct a transmission facility.”®

Thus, Somerset is incorrect when it contends, for example, with respect to anticipated
impacts on Buckland Mills Battlefield and Historic District, that “none of this evidence has been
presented to the Commission, or otherwise provided to the parties for consideration within this
proceeding.””” In fact, information regarding potential impacts to Buckland Mills was provided
as part of the Company’s Appendix,’® discussed in detail in the Virginia Department of
Environmental Quality (“‘DEQ”) Supplement” as well as the Environmental Routing Study®’
(which even included visual simulations of impacts to the battlefield),?! extensively examined by
the Virginia Department of Historic Resources, as documented in the DEQ Report,®? addressed
in the Company’s rebuttal testimony,®* and cited multiple times in the Hearing Examiner’s
Report.# Such unsubstantiated claims undermine the veracity of the Petitions and show that the
statements of Petitioners must be carefully evaluated by the Commission.

The Company’s evaluation of the anticipated impacts to historic, scenic, and cultural

assets (including Buckland Mills) from the proposed Project initially led it to select the Railroad

76 Interim Order at 7-8 (internal citations omitted).

~ 77 Somerset Petition at 17.

8 Ex. 3 (Appendix) at 98-100.

" Ex. 3 (DEQ Supplement) at 15-19.

80 Ex. 10 (Thommes Direct and Environmental Routing Study) at 43-44.
81 1d. at 56.

82 Ex. 27 (DEQ Report) at 25, 55-59, 61.

8 Ex. 48 (Berkin Rebuttal) at 11-14.

8 Hearing Examiner’s Report at 16, 35, 59, 77.
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